
Mine Citation/Order U.S. Deoartment of Labor 
Mine Safety and Health Administration 

Section 1-Vlolallon Data 

3. Citation/1. Date Mo Da Yr 2. Time (24 Hr. Clock) 
Order Number 919164111/4/2021 1 0750 1 

5. Operator4, Served To Scott Webb, Safety Director 
M-CLASS MINING LLC 

7. Mine ID (Contractor)6. Mine 
11-03189MC#l MINE 

8. Condition or Practice Ba. Written Notice (103g) 1 I 

MC#l Mine did not immediately contact MSHA at once without delay and within 15 minutes once 
they knew of the fire on the Headgate #8 Longwall behind the headgate shields between 
crosscut 26 and crosscut 27 in entry 1 that occurred on 8/13/2021. Miners were not withdrawn 
to a safe area and the longwall remained in operation. MSHA was notified of the accident at 
10:49 EST on B/14/2021 by a hazardous condition complaint. This violation is an unwarrantable 
failure to comply with a mandatory standard. The mine operator has engaged in aggravated 
conduct constituting more than ordinary negligence. 

See Continuation Form (MSHA Form 7000-Sa) D 
·9, Vlolalloh A. Heallh 0 

Safety@ 
Other D 

B. Section 
of Act 

C. Part/Section of 
Tltle30CFR 

50.lO(d) 

Section 11-1,nspeclor's Evaluallon 

10. Gravity: 
A. Injury or Illness (has) (Is): No Likelihood D Unlikely 0 Reasonably Likely 0 Hlghly likely Ill Occurred D . 
B. Injury or Illness could rea­ No lost Workdays □ Lost Workdays Or Restricted Duly D Permanently Disabling D Fatal Illsonably be expected to be: 

D. Number of Persons Affected: C. Significant and Substantial: Yes Ill No 0 074 

11. Neglfgence (check one) A. None D B.Low 0 C. Moderate 0 D.Hlgh D E. Reckless Disregard [l) 

12. Type of Action 104 (d) (2) 13. Type of Issuance (check one) Citation O Order Ill Safeguard D Written Notice.□ 

E. Citation/ F. Dated Mo Da Yr14. Initial Action 
A. Citation D B. Order Ill C. Safeguard D D. Written Notice D Order Number 9195395 4/26/2021 

15. Area or Equipment 
Headgate ~8 1ongwa11 and underground area of the mine. 

16. Termination Due Mo Da Yr
A. Date B. Time (24 Hr. Clock) 

Section 111-Termlnallon Action 

17, Acllon to Terminate 

MoDa Yr1B. Terminated A. Date B; Time (24 Hr. Clock) 

Section IV--AulOmaled System Dala 

23. AR Number22.ARName Bub Whitfield 25151 

19. Type of Inspection 20. Event Number 21. Primaryor Mill 
(acllvily code) EOB 7006992 

MSHA Form 7000-3, Apr 08 (revised) Inaccordancewilh \he provisions ol lhe Small Business Regulatoiy Enloreement Fairness Act of 1996, the Small Business AdmlnlslraUon has 
established a Nallonal Smell Business and Agriculture Regutaloiy Ombudsman and 10 Regional Fairness Boards to receive comments from small businesses aboul federal agency 
enforcement acilons. The Ombudsman annuaMy evaluates enforcemenl acllvllles and rates each agency's responsiveness to small business. Ifyou wish to comment on Iha 
enforcement actions of MSHA, you may call 1-888-REG-FAIR (1-888-734-3247), 0( wrke Iha Ombudsman al Small Business Admlnlslrallon, Office of Iha National Ombudsman, 4093rd • 
Street, SW MC 2120. Washington, DC 20416. Please note, however, that your right to Ille e comment with the Ombudsman Is In addlllon to any olher rights you may have, including 
fhe tight to contest cllatlons and proposed penalties and obtain a hearing before the Federal Mine Safely and Heallh Review Commission. 



Mine Citation/Order U.S. Department of Labor 
Mine Safety and Health Administration 

Section l••Vlolatlon Dale 

1. Date Mo Da YT 12, Time (24 Hr. Clock) 
11/4/2021 0853 

3. Citation/ 
1 Order Number 9191642 

4.ServedTo Scott Webb, Safety Director 5.0perator 

M-CLASS MINING LLC 
6.Mlne 

MC#l MINE 
7. Mlne ID 

11-03189 
(Contractor) 

8. Condlllon or Practice Sa. Written Nollce (103g) r 1 

The operator failed to report the longwall fire that occurred at the mine on 8/13/2021 at the 
Headgate #8 longwall within ten working days after the fire occurred. Additionally, 
information for items 7, 11, and 12 under Section C were not completed and items 6 and a 
under Section Care not correct. The condition has been designated as unon-significant and 
substantial" because the conduct violated a provision of the Mine Act other than a mandatory 
safety or health standard . 

Standard 50.20(a) was cited 13 times in two years at mine 1103189. 

I 

See ConttnuaUon F01m (MSHA Form 7000-3a) D · 
9. Vlolalfon A. Heallh 0 B. Section C. Part/Section of 

Safely IZJ of Act Tllle30CFR 
Other D S0.20(a) 

SecUon ll••lnspector's Evalualfon 

10. Gravlly: 
A. Injury or Illness (has) (Is): No Likelihood 0 Unlikely D Reasonably Likely 0 Highly Llkely 0 Ocourred 0 
8. Injury or Illness could rea­

No Lost Workdays 0 Losl Workdays Or Reslrlcted Duly 0 Permanently Dlsabffng 0 Fatal 0sonabl be ex ected to be: 

C. Slgnlfloant and Substanllal: D. Number of Persons Affected: 
YesO No Ill 000 

11. Negligence (check one) A. None 0 B. low D C. Moderate D D. High Cl} E. Reckless Disregard 0 

12. Type of Action 104(a) 13. Type of Issuance (check one) Citation [l) Order O Safeguard O Written Notice O 

E. Citation/ F. Dated Mo Da . Yr 
A, Citation D 8, Order D C. Safeguard D D. Written Notice D Order Number 

14. lnltlal Action 

15. Area or Equipment 

16. Termination Due Mo De Yr
A. Date B. Time (24 Hr. Clock)

111512021 0800 
SecUon 111-•Termlnallon Acllon 

17. Action to Terminate 

MoDa Yr18. Terminated A. Date B. Time (24 Hr. Clock) 

Secdon IV••AulomatedSystem Dara 
21. Primary or MIii 19. Type of Inspection 20. Event Number 

(acllvll}' code) EO 8 7006992 
23. AR Number22.AR Name Bub Whitfield 25151 

MSHA Form 7000-3, Apr 08 (revised) In accordance with the provisions of lhe Small Business Aegulalory Enl01cemenl Falmess Act of 1998, lhe Small Business Admlnlslrelion has 
established aNallonal Small Business and Agrlcullure Regula!Ory Ombudsman and 10 Regional Fairness Boards lo receive comments from small businesses about lederal agenoy 
enlorcemenl acllons. The Ombudsman annuaHy evaluates enlorcement acllvllles and rates each agency's responsiveness lo small business. II you wish lo comment on the 
enlorcemenl acllont ofMSHA, you may call 1-888-REO-FAfR (1-888-78◄ ·3247), or write the Ombudsman at Small Business Admlnlslrallon, Ofllce of the National Ombudsman, 409 3rd 
Street, sw MC 2120, Washington, oc 20416. Please note, however, Iha\ your rlghl lo tlleacomment with the Ombudsman Is In addition loany other rtghlsyou may have, Including 
the rlghl to contest citations and proposed penakles and obtain ahearing before the Federal Mine Safety and Health Review Commission. 



Mine Citation/Order U.S. Department of Labor 
Mine Safety and Health Administration 

Section 1--Vlolatlon Date 

1. Date Mo Da Yr ,2. Time (24 Hr. Clock) 
11/4/2021 0900 

3. Citation/ 
Order Number1 9191643 

4. Served To Scott Nebb, Safety Director 5. Operator 

M-CLASS MINING LLC 
6. Mine 

MC#l MINE 
7. Mine ID 

11-03189 
(Contractor) 

8. Condition or Practice 

A foam generator was observed on the Headgate #8 longwall in number l entry between crosscut 
25 and crosscut 26 under unsupported roof during investigation on 8/14/2021 of a hazard 
complaint of a fire on the longwall. This violation is an unwarrantable failure to comply 
with a mandatory standard. The mine operator has engaged in aggravated conduct constituting 
more than ordinary negligence. 

See ContlnueUon Form (MSHA Form 7000-3a) 0 

Ba. Written Notice (103g) t 1 

9, Vlolatlon A. Health 0 B. Section C. Part/Section of 
of Aot Tltle30CFRSafety 121 

75.202(b)Other 0 
Section 11-lmlpeclol's Evaluatlon 
10. Gravity: 

A, lnju,y or Illness (has) (Is): No Ukellhood 0 Unllkely 0 Reasonably Likely D Hlghly Likely Ill Occurred 0 
B. Injury or Illness could rea­

.No Lost Workdays □ Lost Workdays Or Restrl~ted Duty 0 Permanently Dlsabllng 0 Fatal Illsonab be ex acted to be: 

C. Significant and Substantlal: D. Number of Persons Affected:Yes@ No 0 001 

11, Neglfgence (check one) A.None 0 B.Low O C. Moderate O D.Hlgh Ill E. Reckless Disregard O 

12. Type of Acllon 104 (d) (2) 13. Type of Issuance (check one) Cltallon D Order Ill Safeguard O Wrlllen Notice O 

14. lnlllal AcUon E. Cltallon/ F. Dated Mo Da Yr 
A. Citation O 8, Order Ii] C. Safeguard D D. Wrlllen Nollce 0 Order Number 9195395 4/26/2021 

15. Area or Equipment 
The foam generator observed on the Headgate· #8 longwall in number 1 entry between crosscut 25 
and crosscut 26 under unsupported roof. 

16. Termination Due Mo Da Yr
A. Date B. Time (24 Hr. Clock) 

Seollon 111•-TermlnaUon Action 

17. Action lo Terminate 

MoDa Yr18. Terminated A. Date B. Time (24 Hr. Clock) 

SeoUon IV--Automated System Cala 

19. Type of Inspection 20. Event Number 21. Primary or MIii 
(actlvlly code) E08 7006992 

22.AR Name 23. AR Number
Bub Whitfield 25151 

MSHA Form 7000-3, Apr OB (revised) In accordance wtlh the provisions of lhe Small Business Regulalory Enforcement Fairness Act ol 1896, lhe Smafl Business Admlnlstrallon has 
eslebllshed a Na11onal Small Business and Agrlcuhure Regulato,y Ombudsman and 1 o Regfonel Fairness Boards lo receive comments from smell businesses about federal agency 
enforcement actions. The Ombudsman annually evaluates enlon:emenl ecllvllles end rates each agency's responsiveness to small business. II you wish to comment on Iha 
enforGement acllons ol MSHA, you may can 1-e88-REG-FAIA (1-888-734-3247), or write the Ombudsman el Smell Business Administration, Olllce of the National Ombudsman, 409 3rd 
st,ael, sw MC 2120, Washlnglon, oc20416. Please nole, however, thel yolK lightlo Ule acomment wllh the Ombudsman Is In addition to any other rlohls you may have, Including 
the right to contest citations and proposed penalties and obtain a hearing belore the Federal Mine Safely and Heahh Review Commission. 



Mine Citation/Order U.S. Department of Labor 
Mine Safety and Health Administration 

Section 1-Vlolallon Data 

1. Dale Mo Da Yr 2. Time (24 Hr. Clock) 
11/4/2021 09041 

3. Cllallon/ 
1 Order Number 9191644 

4. Served To Scott Webb, Safety Director 5. Operator 
M-CLASS MINING LLC 

6. Mine 
MC#l MINE 

7. Mine ID 
11-03189 

(Contractor) 

8. Condition or Practice Ba. Wrltlen Notice (103g) 1 t 

An inadequate pre-shift examination for the oncoming third shift was conducted by the 2nd 
shift longwall foreman on 8/13/2021 between the hours of 8:00 p.m. and 11:00 p.m. A fire 
occurred on the Headgate #8 longwall behind the headgate shields between crosscut 26 and 
crosscut 27 in entry 1 and the hazardous condition of the fire was not recorded in the 
examination book. Miners were not withdrawn to a safe area and the longwall remained in 
operation, This violation is an unwarrantable failure to comply with a mandatory standard. 
The mine operator has engaged in aggravated conduct constituting more than ordinary 
negligence. 

Standard 75,360(a) (1) was cited 2 times in two years at mine 1103189 (1 to the operator, 1 to 
a contractor). 

See ConllnuaUon Form (MSHA Fo1m 7000·38) D 
9. Violation A. Heallh 0 B. Section C. Part/Section of 

Safety@ of Act Tllle30CFR 
Olher D 75. 360 (a) (1) 

SecUon 11--lnspector'& Evaluallon 

10. Gravity: 
A. Injury or Illness {has) (Is): No Likelihood Cl Unlikely 0 Reasonably Likely D Highly Likely £ll Occurred D 
8. Injury or Illness could rea­

No Lost Workdays D Lost Workdays Or Restricted Duly D Permanenlly Disabllng D Fatal £llsonsbl be ex ected to be: 

C. Slgnlllcant l!fld Substantial: D. Number of Persons Affected;Yes Ill No □ 134 

11, Negligence (check one) A.None D B.Low D C. Moderate D D. High 0 E. Reckless Disregard [l) 

12. Type of Acllon 104 (d) (2) 13. Type of Issuance (check one) Citation D Order Ill Safeguard D Written Notice D 

14. lnUlal Action 
A. Cllstlon O B. Order [l) C. Safeguard D D. Written Notice D 

E. Citation/ 
Order Number 9195395 

F. Dated Mo Da Yr 
4/26/2021 

15. Area or Equipment 
Headgate #8 longwall •. 

16. Termlnallon Due Mo Da Yr
A. Date B. Time (24 Hr, Clock) 

Section 111--Termlnallon Action 

17. Action lo Terminate 

MoDa Yr18. Terminated A. Date B. Time {24 Hr. Clock) 

Secllon IV--AulolllaledSystem Data 

19. Type oflnspectlon 20. Event Number 21. Prlmal'f or Mill 
(activity code) EOB 7006992 

22.AR Name 23. AR Number
Bub Whitfield 25151 

MSHA Fonn 7001h'3, Apr OB (revised) In accordance wilh the provisions of Iha SmaH Business Regulatory Enforcement Fairness Acl of 1996, the Small Business Administration has 
eslabllshed aNational SmaU Business and Agrlcullure RegulalOI)' Ombudsman 1111d 10 Regional Fairness Boards to recelv11 comments from smaU businesses about federal agency 
enforcement actions. The Ombudsman aMUaHy evalueles enloroemenl acllvllles snd rates each agancy's fel;ponslvenei,s to sman business. Ifyou wish lo comment on Iha 
enlorcemenl actions ofMSHA, you maycall 1-888-REG-FAIR (Hl88-734-3247), or wrile lhe Ombudsman at Small lluslness Admlnlslratfon, Olflca of the National Ombudsman, 409 3rd 
Slreel, SW MC 2120, Washington, DC 20416. Please nole, however, lhal yoor right to Ille a comment wllh the Ombudsman IsIn addlllon to any other rights you may have, lncludlng 
lhe rlghl to conies! cltaUons·and proposed penaffles and obtain ahearing before lhe Federal Mine Safety and Heallh Review Commission. 



Mine Citation/Order U.S. Department of Labor 
Mine Safety and Health Administration 

Section I·-VlolallonData 

1. Dale Mo Da Yr 2. Time (24 Hr. Clock) 
11/4/2021 1 0908 

3, Citation/ 
Order Number 1 9191645 

4. Served To Scott Webb, Safety D'irector 5. Operator 

M~CLASS MINING LLC 
6. Mine 

MC#l MINE 
7. Mine ID 

11-03189 
(Contractor) 

8. Condition or Practice Sa. Written Notice (103g) 1 t 

An inadequate on-shift examination was conducted by the 2nd shift longwall foreman on 
8/13/2021. A fire occurred on the Headgate #8 longwall behind the headgate shields between 
crosscut 26 and crosscut 27 in entry 1 and the hazardous condition of the fire was not 
recorded in the· examination book. Miners were not withdrawn to a safe area and the- longwall 
remained in operation. Thia violation is an unwarrantable failure to comply with a mandatory 
standard. The mine operator has engaged in aggravated conduct constituting more than ordinary 
negligence. 

See ConUnuallon Form (MSHA Fonn 7000-Se) 0 
9. Violallon A. Health 0 B. Secllon C. Part/Section ot 

Safety IZI of Act Tllle30CFR 
Other D 75. 362 (a) (1) 

Secllon 11-lnapeclol's Evaluation 

10. Gravlly: 
A. Injury or Illness (has) (Is): No Likelihood D Unlikely 0 Reasonably Likely D Hlghly Likely Ii] Occurred D 
B. Injury or Illness could rea­

No-Lost Workdays. 0. LostWorkdays.Or. Restr!cl~,d-Duty 0 Permanenlly Disabling 0. Fatal Ii]sonabl be expected to be: 

C. Significant and Subslanllal: D. Number of Persons Affected:Yes Ill No □ 074 

11. Negligence (check one) A.None D B.Low D C: Moderale D D. High 0 E. Reckless Disregard Ii] 

12. Type of Action 104(d) (2) 13. Type of Issuance (check one) Citation D Order Ii] Safeguard D Written Notice □ 

14. lnitlal Action E. Citation/ F. Dated Mo Da Yr 
A. Citallon D B. Order Ill C. Safeguard D D. Written Notice D Order Number 9195395 4/26/2021 

15. Area or Equipment 
Headgate #8 longwal.l. 

1'6'. Termination Oue Mo D-a Yr
A. Date B. Time (24 Hr. Clock) 

Secllon 111--Termlnallon Acllon 

17. Action to Terminate 

MoDa Yr1&. Terminated A. Date B. Time (24 Hr. Clock) 

Section IV-Automated System Data 

19. Type of Inspection 20. Event Number 21, Primary or MIii 
(actlvlly code) E 0 8 7006992 

22.ARName 23. AR Number
Bub Whitfield' 25151 

MSHA Form 7000{3, Apr OB (revised) In accordance wffh the provisions of the Small Buskless Regulatory Enforcement Fairness Act of 1996, the Small Business Admlnlslratlon hes 
established a Nallonel Small.Buslnasa and AgllcuUure.Aeguletcsry.Orllbudsman.and 10 Regional Felfffllls aclaldll IQ.r81;Qtve.comments,.from small.buS[ne~e!i-Bb.olll.federal.a11ency 
enforcemenl ac!IOll&, The Ombudsman annually evaluates enforcement aclMlles end rates each agency's responsiveness to small business. Ifyou wish to commenl on the 
enforcement actions of MSHA, you may call 1-888-AEG-FAIR (1-888-734•3247), orw,ile lhe Ombudsman al Small Business Admlnlslratlon, Office of the National Ombudsman, 409 3rd 
Street, SW MC 2120, Washington, DC 20416. Please nole, however, that your right to me a commenl with \he Ombudsman la In addlUon lo any other rlghta you may have, Including 
the rfghl lo conies! cllallons and proposed penalties end obtain a hearing before lhe Federal Mine Safety and Health Review Commlsslon. 

https://Workdays.Or


Mine Citation/Order U.S. Department of Labor 
Mine Safety and Health Administration 

SeGtlon·I-Vfolatlon Data 

1. Dale Mo Da Yr 2. Time (24 Hr. Clock) 
11/4/2021 09141 

3. Citation( 
Order Number 1 9191646 

4. Served To 

6. Mine 

Scott Webb, Safety Director 

MC#l MINE 

5. Operator 
M-CLASS MINING LLC 

7. Mine ID 
11-03189 

{Contractor) 

8. Condition or Practice Ba. Written Nollce (103g) 1 1 

An inadequate pre-shift examination for the oncoming shift was conducted by the 3rd shift 
longwall foreman on 8/14/2021 between the hours of 4:00 a.m. and 7:00 a.m. A fire occurred 
on the Headgate #8 longwall behind the headgate shields between crosscut 26 and crosscut 27 
in efitry 1 .ana the hazardous co~dition of the fire was not recorded in the exa~ination book. 
Miners were not withdrawn to a safe area and the longwall remained in operation. This 
violation is an unwarrantable failure to com~ly with a mandatory standard. The mine operator 
has engaged in aggravated conduct constituting more than ordinary negligence. 

Standard 75.360{a) (1) was cited 2 times in two years at mine 1103189 (1 to the operator, l to 
a contractor). · 

See Conlfnualfon Form (MSHA Form 7000-3a) O 
9. Vlolallon A. Health O B. Secllon C. PartfSectlon of 

Safety @ . of Act Tllle.ao CFR 
Other 0 75. 360 (a) (1) 

SeOllon ll••lnspBCtor's Evaluallon 
1o. Gravity: 

A. Injury or Illness (has) (Is): No likelihood 0 Unlikely 0 Reasonably Likely O Highly Likely Ill Occurred 0 
I' B. Injury or Illness could rea­

No.Lost Workdays D Lost Workdays.Qr Fjestrlctetl Du!Y 0 f'.ermanently f?lsa~ling O. Fatal Ii]sonabl be ex acted to be: 

C. Significant and Substantial: D. Numb!lr of Persons Affected:Yes Ill No 0 134 

11. Negllgence (check one) A. None 0 a.Low D C. Moderate 0 D.Hlgh Q E. Reckless Disregard 0 

12. Type of Acllon 104 (d) (2) 13. Type of Issuance (check one) Citation O Order Ill Safeguard O Wrlllen Notice O 

14. lnltlal Action E. Cltallon/ F. Dated Mo Da Yr 
A. Citation O B. Order Iii C. Safeguard O D. Written Notice 0 Order Number 9195395 4/26/2021 

15. Area or Equipment 
Headgate #8 longwall. 

16. T-ermlnatlon Due- Mo Da Yr 
A. Date B. Time (24. Hr. Clock) 

Section IU·•Termlnalfon AcUon 

17. Action to Terminate 

MoDa Yr-1-8·. Ter-mlnated A. Date B. Time (24 Hr. Clock) 

Section IV--Automaled Syslem Data 

19. Type ot Inspection 20. Event Number 21. Primary or MIii 
(activity code) EOB 7006992 

22.AR Name 23. AR Number 
Bub Whitfield. 25151 

MSHA fonn 7000-3, Apr 06 {revised) In accordance with Iha provisions of the Small Business Regutatoiy Enforcement Falmess Act ol 1998, the Small Business AdmlnlstraUon has 
.asta.bllshed a.Nallonal.Small Buslnass.and,Ag,fcuhure Flllgolaldcy Ombudsman 1111d 10.ReglonalF.alrnll~s-Boart!s I0-reeerve.comme~-from smallbuslnes~es about fedaral agency 
enforcement actions. The Ombudsman annuaHy evaluates enforcement activities and rates each agency'ls re:;pon~lvonoo:s to omall buslnoas, IIyou wish lo comment on tho 
enforcement actions ofMSHA, you may call 1-888-REG-FAIR (1-888·734-3247), or write the Ombudsman alSmall Business Admlnlstrell011, Office of Iha Natlonel Ombudsman, 409 3rd 
Street SW MC 2120, Washington, DC 20416. Please note, however, lhat your rl9hl lo Ille a comment with the Ombudsman Is In addition lo any olher rights you may have, Including 
the ilghl lo contest cllallons and proposed penalHes and obtain a hearing before Iha Federal Mine Safely and Health Review Commission. 

https://Workdays.Qr


Mine Citation/Order U.S. Department of labor 
Mine Safety and Health Administration 

SecUon 1-Vlolatlon Data 

1. Date Mo Da Yr 
11/4/2021 

2. Time (24 Hr. Clook) 
09161 

3. Citation/ 
Order Number 1 9191647 

4. Served To Scott Webb, Safety Director 5. Operator 
M-CLASS MINING LLC 

6.Mlne 
MC#l MINE 

7. Mine ID 
11-03189 

(Contractor) 

8. Condition or Practice 8a. Wrlllen Notice (103g) 1 1 

An inadequate on-shift examination was conducted by the 3rd shift longwall foreman on 
8/14/2021. A fire occurred on the Headgate #8 longwall behind the headgate shields between 
crosscut 26 and crosscut 27 in entry 1 and the hazardous condition of the fire was not 
r,ecorded in the examination book. Miners were not withdrawn· to a safe area and the longwall 
remained in operation. This violation is an unwarrantable failure to comply with a mandatory 
standard. The mine operator has engaged in aggravated conduct constituting more than ordinary 
negligence. 

See Continuation Form (MSHA Form 7000,3a) D 
9. Vlolallon A. Health 0 B.Secllon C. ParVSection of 

Safely 0 
Other D 

of Act Tille 30CFR 
75. 362 (a) (1) 

Seellon11-lnspeclo(sEvaluation 

10. Gravity: 
· UnHkely 0 Reasonably Likely 0 Highly Llkely Ill Occurred 0A. Injury or Illness (has) (is): No Ukellhood D 

B. Injury or Illness could rea­ No Lost Workdays D Lost Workdays Or Restricted Duty 0 Permanently Disabling D Fatal [l)
sonably be ex acted to be: 

D. Number of Per{lons Affected: C. Significant and Sub$1~ntial: Yes [l) No 0 056 

11. Negllgence (check 0l\8) A.None D B.Low O C. Moderate O D.Hlgh 0 E. Reckless Disregard Ill 
.. :~ 

13. Type of Issuance (check one) Citation O Order Ill Safeguard O Written Notice O12. Type of Action 104(d) (2) 

14, lnltlal Action 
A. Citation D B. Order Ill C. Safeguard D D. Wl\tten No\lce 0 

E. Citation/ 
Order Number 9195395 

·F. Dated Mo Da Yr . 
4/26/2021 

15. Area or Equipment 
Headgate #8 1ongwa11. 

Mo Da Yrf6'. Termlnalion Due A. Date .B. Time (24 Hr. Clock) 

Secllon lll••Termlnallon Action 

17. Aollon to Terminate 

MoDa Yr1-8. Terminated A. Date B. Time (24 Hr. Clock) 

Section IV--Aulomaled 5YS1em Data 

23. AR Number 22.AR Name Buh Whitfield 25151 

20. Event Number 21. Primary or MIii19. Type of Inspection 
(activity code) E08 7006992 

MSHA Form 7000-3, Apr 08 (revised) In accordance wilh the provisions of !heSmall Business Aegulatol)' Enforeemenl Fairn11ss Act of 1996, !he Small Business Admlnlstralion has 
aslabllsh11d a Nattonal Small Business and Agrfcullure Rll!IIJlalory Ombut!Slilan and 10 R9lllonlll Fairness Bolltds to nt~elve comments from small bllsln!lssss aboul federal agency 
enforcement acUons. The Ombudsman annuaKy evaluates enforcement actMlles and rates each agency',: responslvene&s to smaH business. II you wish to comment on the 
enforcement acUons of MSHA, you may call 1·888-REG·FAIR (1·888-734-3247), or write lhe Ombudsman at Small BusinessAdmlnlslrallon, Office of Iha Nallonal Ombudsman, 409 3rd 
Street, SW MC 2120, Washlnglon, DC 20416. Please note, however, that your right lo file a comment whh !heOmbudsman lsIn addlllon to any other rlghlB you may have, Including 
the ilght 10 conies! clla0ons and proposed penalties and obleln a hearing before the Federal Mina Safety and Heallh Review Commission. 



Mine Citation/Order U.S. Deoartment of Labor 
Mine Safety and Health Administration 

Secllon I- Violation Data 

1. Dale Mo Da Yr 2. Time (24 Hr. Clock) 
11/4/2021 09191 

3. Citation/ 
Order Number 1 9191648 

4. Served To scott Webb, Safety Director 5. Operator 

M-CLASS MINING LLC 
6. Mine 

MC#l MINE 
7. Mine ID 

11-03189 
(Contractor) 

8. Condition or Pracllce Ba. Written Notice (1OSg) L I 

The responsible person on 2nd shift 8/13/2021 and 3rd shift starting on 8/13/2021 did not 
initiate and conduct an immediate mine evacuation when there was a fire located at the 
Headgate #8 longwall behind the headgate shields between crosscut 26 and crosscut 27 in entry 
1. Miners were not withdrawn to a safe area and the longwall remained in operation. This 
violation is an unwarrantable failure to comply with a mandatory standard. The mine operator
has engaged in aggravated conduct constituting more than ordinary negligence. 

See Continuation Form (~HA F01m 7000,Sa) 0 
9. Violallon A. Health 0 B. Section C. Part/Secllon of 

Safely@ of Act Tllle30.CFR 
Other 0 75 .1501 (b) 

Section ll-lnspeclo~s liva1uauon 

10. Gravity: 
A. Injury or Illness (has) (Is): No Likelihood D Unlikely 0 Reasonably Likely 0 Highly Likely Ill Occurred D 
B. Injury or illness could rea­

No Lost Workdays 0 Lost Weirkdays Or Rl!strlcted Duty D Perman8n_ll~ Dlsabllng 0 Fatal Illsonab be ex acted to be: 

C. Slgnlfk;ant and Substantial: D. Numbf)r of Persons Affected:Yes Ill No 0 134 

11 , Negligence (check O(IQ) A.None D B.Low D C. Moderate D D.Hlgh 0 E. Reckless Disregard Ill 

12. Type of AcHon 104(d) (2) 13. Type of Issuance (check one) Citation D Order Ill Safeguard O Written Notice □ 

14. lnlllal Action E. Cilatlon/ F. Dated Mo Da Yr 
A. Citation O B. Order Ill C. Safeguard D D. Written Notice D Order Number 9195395 4/26/2021 

16, Area or Equipment 

Headgate #8 longwall and underground area of the mine. 

Mo Da YrH>.Termination Due · A. Date B. Time (24 Hr. Clock) 

Section111•-Termlnallon Acllon 

17. Action to Terminate 

MoDa Yrt &. T.ermfnated A. Date B. Time (24 Hr. Clock) 

Section IV--Aulomeled System Dala 

19. Type of Inspection 20. Event Number 21 . Primary orMHI 
(actlvllycode) EOB 7006992 

22.ARName 23. AR Number
Bub Whitfield 25151 

MSHA Form 7000-3, Apr 08 (revised) In accordance With the provisions of the Small Business Regulatory Enlorcemenl Fairness Ac\ of 1996, lhe Small Business Admlnlstrallon has 
.eslabllshed 4 Nallonal Smatt Business and Ag~tuflure Regulatory Orilblllfsrilan in1d 10 R8fllol1lil Fairness eoarrJg lo tecelvii Cdmmenls lrom small bustnagsas.aooul federal agenby 
enforcement actions. The Ombudsman annually evaluates enlorcem8lll acltvllles and ralea each agency's responsiveness to small business. Ifyou wish lo commenl on Iha 
enforcemenl actions of MSHA, you may call 1-888-REG-FAIR (1-8118-734'1247), or w,fle Iha Ombudsman al SmaU Business AdmlnlstraUon, Office of_ the NaUonal Ombudsman, 4093rd 
Street, SW MC 2120, Waehlnglon, DC 20416. Please note, however, lhat your right to lie a comment with the Ombudsman Is In addition to any other rights )(IU may have, lncludlng 
the right to contest cllallons and proposed panalllas and obtain a hearing before lhe Federal Mine Safely and Heallh Review Commlssion. 



Mine Citation/Order U.S. Department of Labor 
Mine Safety and Health Administration 

Secllon I-Violation Dala 
3. CUatlon/ 

Order Number 9191649 
1. Date· Mo Da Yr 2. Time (24 Hr. Clock) 

11/4/2021 1 0921 1 
5. Operator4. Served To scott Webb, Safety Director 

M-CLASS MINING LLC 
7. Mine ID (Contractor)6.Mlne 

11-03189 
aa. Written Notice (103g) 1 1 

MC#l MINE 
8. Condlllon or Practice 

The mine operator did not follow its' approved Mine Emergency Evacuation and Firefighting
Program when a fire occurred on the Headgate #8 longwall behind the headgate shields between 
crosscut 26 and crosscut 27 in entry 1 on 8/13/2021. Miners were not withdrawn to a safe area 
and the longwall remained in operation. This violation is an unwarrantable failure to comply 
with a mandatory standard. The mine operator engaged in aggravated conduct constituting more 
than ordinary negligence. 

See Conllnuallon Form (MSHA Form 7000.Sa) D 
9. Vioiallon A. Health D 

Safety@ 
Other □ 

B. Section 
of Act 

C. Part/Section of 
Tllfe30CFR 

75.1502 

Section 11..1nspeclot'sEllaluallon 

10.Gravlty: 
A. Injury or Illness (has) (Is): No Likelihood 0 Unlikely 0 Reasonably likely 0 Highly Likely Ii) Occurred 0 

B. Injury or Hines~ could rea­ No Lost Workdays D Lost Workdays Or Restricted Duly 0 Permanently Disabling D Fatal Ill 
sonably be ex· acted to be: 

D. Numb11r of Parsons Affected: ·C. ~lgnlflcanl and Substantial: Yes Ill No □ 134 

11. Negllgenoe (check QOe) A. None 0 B.Low 0 C. Moderate D D. High □ E. Reckless Disregard Ill 

13. Type of Issuance (check one) Citation O Order Ill Safeguard D Written Notice O12. Type of Aollon 104(d) (2) 

E. Citation/ F. Dated Mo Da Yr14. Initial Action 
A. Citation O B. Order Iii C. Safeguard O D. Written Notice D Order Number 9195395 4/26/2021 

15. Area or Equipment 
Headgate #8 1ongwa11 and underground area of the mine. 

rs-. Termination Due · A. Dale Mo Da Yr B. Time (24 Hr. Clock) 

Section Ill-Termination Action 

17. Action to Terminate 

MoDa Yr1·8. Terminated A. Date B. Time (24 Hr. Clock) 

Section IV--AulOmated System Dale 

23. AR Number
22.AR Name 25151Bub Whitfield 

21. Primary or MIii19. Type of Inspection 20. Event Number 
(actlvllycode} E08 7006992 

MSHA Form 7000·3, Apr 08 (revised) In accordance with the provisions of Iha Small Business Regulaloiy Enforcement Fairness Act of 1996, Iha Smatl 8uslness Administration has 
estlllillshdd IINallonal Small Business and Agrlcullure RpgUlalory On1budslTian and 10 Reglondl Fairness BC!ards to receive conlmenls front small buslne!ISes. aboUI federal agency 
enlorcemont acllons. The Ombudsman annually evaluates enforcement acllvffles and rales each agency's responsiveness to small business. IIyou wish locommenl on the 
enrorcemenl acllons of MSHA, you may caU 1-888-REG,FAIR (1-888-734-3247), orwrUe IhaOmbudsman al Small Business Admlnlslrallon, Office ol lhe Nallonal Ombudsman, 409 3rd 
Slreel, sw MC 2120,Washington, DC 20416. Please note, however, that your right lo file a comment wllh the Ombudsman Is In addillon lo any other rights you may have, Including 
the ilght IO contest cllailons and proposed penallles and oblaln a hearing before tho Federal Mine Safety and Health Review Commission. 



Mine Citation/Order U.S. Deoartment of Labor 
Mine Safety and Health Administration 

Secllon t-Vtolallon Data 

1-. Date Mo Da Yr 2. Time (24 Hr. Clock) 3. Citation/ 
Order Number 919165011/4/2021 1 0924 1 

5. Operator4.SeNodTo Scott Webb, Safety Oirector 
M-CLASS MINING LLC 

7. Mine ID (Contractor) 
MCltl MINE 

6. Mine 
11-03189 

8. Condillon or Praclice Sa. Wrlllen Notice (103g) t 1 

The operator is not following the tracking system requirements of item (a) of page 5 and 
items (a) through (f) of page 7 in its approved Emergency Response Plan dated Feb. 18, 2020. 
The following mine personnel were working underground without being tracked by the mine 
eracRing ~ystem au~i~g a fire locatea at the Headg~te #8 lohgWall behind the headgate shields 
between crosscut 26 and crosscut 27 in entry l; The Foresight General Manager on 2nd shift of 
8/13/2021, the General Manager on 2nd shift of 8/13/2021( the Mine Superintendent on 2nd 
shift of 8/13/2021 and 3rd shift of 8 14 2021 thel11iiil1.iiiliiiiilllil■iiiiiiiiiiiii.on dayshift 
and 2nd shift of 8/13/2021, and an on dayshift and 2nd shift of 8/13/2021. 
Additionally, a miner wasii■IIII■■ un ergroun on 8/14/2021 without being tracked by the 
mine tracking system after the 103(k) Order 9198903 was issued and miners were evacuated. 
Also , two tracking devices used for tracking miners' location underground were found left 

~~~~~I~~~~da:ti;~~e~a~~ ~p~~y~~kitt~:~~~~nn~~~e;~~ :~~d~~B lonqwa11. The tw~ht:v!~~~a~~~~ 
is an unwarrantable failure to comply with a statutory p~sion. ~e mine operator has 

See ConUnuatlon Form (MSHA Form 7000·3&) 0 
9. Violation A. Heallh 0 

Safety 0 
Other D 

8. Secllon 
of Act 

316 (b) (2) (A) 

C. Part/Secllon of 
TIiie 30 CPR 

Seollon 11-fnspeolor's Evaluation 

1O. Gravity: 
A. Injury or Illness (has) (Is): No Likelihood 0 Unlikely 0 Reasonably Likely 0 Highly Likely Ill Occurred 0 
B. Injury or Illness could rea• No Lost Workdays D Los! Workdays Or Restrlcled Duty D Permanently Disabling D Fatal Illsonably be ex acted 10be: 

C. Significant and S1.tbslanllal: D. Numb11r ol Persons Affected:Yes Ill No D 008 

11. Negligi,nce (check one) A. None 0 B. Low 0 C. Moderale O D.Hlgh 0 E. Reckless Disregard Ill 

12. Type ol Acllon 104(d) (2) . . 13. Type of Issuance (check one) Cilallon O Order fZ1 Safeguard O Written Nollce O 

14. Initial Action E. Cllallon/ F. Daled Mo Da Yr 
A. Cllatlon D 8. Order Ill c. Safeguard D D. written Notice D Order Number 9195395 4/26/2021 

·1'5. Area or Equipment
Headgate #8 longwall and und~rground area of the mine. 

Mo Da Yr16. Termination Due A. Date 8. Time (24 Hr. Clock) 

Section 111·•Termtnallon Acllon 

17. Action lo Terminate 

Mo Oa Yr18. Termfnat11d A. Date B. Time (24 Hr. Clock) 

Section IV--Aulomaled l?Ysfem Dale 

19. Type of lnspaclion 20. Event Number 21. Primary or MIii 
(acllvlty code) EO 8 7006992 

23. AR Number22. AR Name Bub Whitfield 25151 

MSHA Form 7000-3, Apr OB (revised) In accordance with tho provisions of the Small Busl~ss Regulato,y Enforcemenl Fairness Acl of 1996, the Small Business AdmlnlsllaUon has 
.eslabllshed a Nallonal Small Business and J\grlcullure RegutlllOl)I.Ohlbullsmanand 10 Ref)lonal l:alrnells Boards to receive.comma11IaJroni sronll businesses, aboul federal.agency
enforcement aclions. Tile Ombudsman annually evaluates enforcement acUvkles and rates each agency'$ responsiveness 10 sman business. Ifyou wish tocomment on lhe 
enforcement aclloos of MSHA, you may con 1-888-REG·FAIR (1-888-734-3247), orwrlle the Ombudsman et Smell Business Admlnlslrallon, Office of the Naffonel Ombudsman, 409 3rd 
Street, SW MG 2120, Washington, DC 20416. Please note, however, lhal your rlghl lo 11111 acommenl wllh\he Ombudsman Is In addlllon lo any other rights you may have, including 
the rfghl to conies! cflaUons and proposed penellfes and oblaln a hearing before the Federel Mine Safely and Heallh Review Commission. 

https://thel11iiil1.iiiliiiiilllil�iiiiiiiiiiiii.on


Mine Citation/Order U.S. Department of Labor 
Continuation Mine Safety and Health Administration 
Section 1--SubsequenlAcllon/ConllnuaUon Data 

• u equent Act on 1a. on nua on 2. Dated Mo Da Yr 3. Citation/
D @ (Original Issue) 11/4/2021 Order Number 9191650 

5. Operator4. Served To Scott Webb, Safety Director 
M-CLASS MINING LLC 

7. Mine ID (Contractor)6. l\,lfne 
11-03189MC#1 MINE 

Secllon lhlusdllcallon for Action 

continuation of 8. Condition or Practice 

engaged in aggravated conduct constituting more than ordinary negligence. This violation is 
an unwarrantable failure to comply with a mandatory standard. 

See Continuation Fonn 0 
Section IIHlubsequenlAolfon Taken 

·· 8. Extended To A. Date Mo Da Yr 
B. Time (24 Hr. Clock) 0 C. Vacated O D. Tennlnated O E. Modified 

9. Type of lnspecUon 10. Event Number 
EOB 7006992 

1'L AR ariie... · ·· · .... .. 7(R..Nunitier" .. T2:-oa1e.. · · · K-1c,· tia· .. Yr.. · · la:·rrme·(24Hr:ctoc1tr ... · .. 
Bub Whitfield 25151 11/4/2021 0924 

MSHA Form 7000-Sa, Mar 85 (revised) 



Mine Citation/Order U.S. Department of Labor 
Mine Safety and Health Administration 

Section I-Violation Data 

1. Date Mo Da Yr 2. Time (24 Hr. Clock) 
11/4/2021 1 0929 

3. Cllallon/ 
Order Number 1 9191651 

4. Served To Scott Webb, Safety Director 5. Operator 
M- CLASS MINING LLC 

6. Mine 
MC#l MINE 

7. Mine ID 
11-03189 

(Contrector) 

a. Condillon or Practice Ba. Written Notice (103g) I I 

Two miners were performing- work underground on 8/14/2021 after the 103 {k) Order 
9198903 was issued at 12:15 p . m. for the fire on the Headgate #8 longwall and miners were 
evacuated. The two miners were not immediately notified of the emergency and evacuation and 
did not leave the underground area of the mine until 1:00p.m. The mine tracking system also 
shows a miner underground on the Viking side of the mine after the 103(k) order 9198903 was 
modified to allow the operator to implement the M-Class South District 2 Panel 8 Longwall 
Atmospheric Monitoring Action Plan 8/14/2021 . The miner gathered firefighting foam from 
multiple locations and took it to the Headgate #8 longwall area. This work was in violation 
of the 103(k) order. 

See Conllouallon Form (MSHA Form 7000-3a) 0 
9. Violallon A. Heallh □ B. Section C. ParVSection of 

Safety 121 of Act Title30CFR 
Other D 103 (kl 

Secllon lHnspeato(s EvaluaClon 

1O. Gravlty: 
A. Injury or Illness (has) (Is): No Likelihood Ill Unlikely 0 Reasonably likely D Highly likely 0 Occurred D 
B. Injury or Hlness could rea­

No Lost Workdays 121 Lost Workdays Or Restricted Duty D Permanenlly Disabling 0 Fatal Dsonably be ex ected·to be: 

C. Slgnllicant and Substanllal: Q. Number of Persons Affected: Yes □ No@ 003 

11. Negllgence (check one) A. None D B.low D c: Moderate (] D. High Ill E. Reckless Disregard D 

12. Type of Acllon 104 (a) 13. TYpe of issuance (check one) Cllalion Ill Order □ Safeguard D Written Notice □ 

14. lnlllal Action E. Citation/ F. Dated Mo Da Yr 
A. Citation D B. Order O C. Safeguard O D. Written Nollce D Order Number 

15. Area or Equipment 

16. Termination Due Mo Da Yr 
A. Date ll/S/ B. Time (24 Hr. Clock) 

2021 1200 
Secllon 111•-Termlnallon Acllon 

17. Acllon to Terminate 

l'roDa18. Terminated A. Date Yr 
B. Time (24 Hr. Clock) 

Section tV- Automelod Syslom Data 

19. Type of Inspection 20. Event Number 21. Primary or Mill 
(activity code) EOS 7006992 

22.AR Name 
Bub Whitfield 

23. AR Number 
25151 

MSHA Form 7000-3, Apr 08 (revised) In accordance wllh Iha provisions of the SmaU Business RegulatoryEnlorcemenl Fairness Act of 1896, the Small Buslnesa Admlnlslrallon has 
eslabllshed aNaUonal Small Buslhess and Agrlcullure Rt111ulaloiy Otnbu!lsm&n and 10 Ae!)lonal Falt118kS B_pards lo receive comments from small busl110sses aboul.lederal ageocy 
enforcement acllons. Tho Ombudsman ennually ovaluales enlorcemonl acllvlllas and rates each agency's responsiveness lo amall business. IIyou wish to comment on the 
enforcement actions of MSHA. you may call 1-BBB·AEG-FAIR (1·888-734-3247), or w,lle lhe Ombudsman al Small Buslne~s Administration, Office ol lho National Ombudsman, 409 3rd 
Street, SW MG 2120, Washington. DC 20416. Please nole. however, that your right lo Ille acomment wllh lhe Ombudsman ls lnadcfllon to any other rlghta you may have, Including 
the r~hl to contest citations and proposed penallles and obtain a hearing before the Federal Mine Salely and Heallh Review commission. 



Mine Citation/Order U.S. Deparlmenl of Labor 
Mine Safety and Health Administration 

Secllon 1--Vlolatlon Oala 

1. Date Mo Da Yr 2. Time (24 Hr. Clock) 
11/4/2021 1 0940 

3. Citation/ 
Order Number 1 9191652 

4. Served To Scott Webb, Safety Director 5. Operator 

M-CLASS MINING LLC 
6.Mlne 

MC#l MINE 
7. Mine ID 

11-03189 
(Contraclor) 

a. Condlllon or Pracllce Sa. Written Notice (103g) 1 1 

Two miners were performing work underground after 103(k) Order 9198903 was issued at 
12:15 p.m. on 8/14/2021 and the mine was evacuated due to a fire on the Headgate #8 Longwall
behind the headgate shields between crosscut 26 and crosscut 27 in entry 1 that occurred on 
8/13/2021. The miners were not immediately notified of the emergency and evacuation. The 
safety director of the mine pulled one of the ■iillillliillilcheck-in tags off the tag board 
without verifying if the miner was located underground, while the miner was still 
underground. Additionally, the other miner's tag was not on the board while the miner was 
underground. Another miner sent underground to find the two ■-■-■lis shown underground on 
the mine tracking system without having a check-in tag on the tag board. This violation is an 
unwarrantable failure to comply with a mandatory standard. The mine operator has engaged in · 
aggravated conduct constituting more than ordinary negligence. 

See Contlnuallon Form (MSHA Form 7000·3a) D 
9. Violation A. Health O B. Section c. ParVSecllon of 

Safely@ of Act Tllle30 CFR 
Other □ 75 .1715 

Sectton H••lnspectofs Eveluallon 

10. Gravlly: 
A. Injury or Illness (has) (Is): No Likelihood D Unlikely 0 Reasonably Likely D Highly Likely Ill Occurred D 
B. Injury or Hlness could rea• 

No Lost Workdays D Losl Workdays Or Reslrloled Duly 0 Permanently Dlsabllng D Fala! Illsonabl be ex acted lo be: 

C. Slgntncant and Substantial; O. Number of Persons Affecled: Vee £ll No □ 003 

t 1. Negligence (check one) A.None 0 B.Low D C. Moderate D 0. High ll) E. Reokless Disregard 0 

12. Type of Acllon 104 (d) (2) 13. Type of Issuance (check one) Citation O Order (i} Safeguard D Wrllten Notice O 

14. lnlllal Acllon E. Citation/ F. Dated Mo Oa Yr 
A. Cltallon D B. Order 0 C. Safeguard D D. Wrlllen Notice 0 . Order Number 9195395 4/26/2021 

15. Area or Equipment 
The underground area of the mine. 

16. Termlnallon Due Mo De Yr
A. Dale B. Time (24 Hr. Clock) 

Secllon Ul·•TermlnallonAcllon 

17. Acllon to Terminate 

Mo Da Yr18. Terminated A. Date B. Time (24 Hr. Clock) 

Secllon IV-Automaled System Data 

19. Type of Inspection 20. Event Number 21. Primary or MIii 
(acllvlly code)· EO 8 7006992 

22.AR Name 23. AR Number 
Bub Whitfield 25151 

MSHA Form 7000·3, Apr 08 (revised) In a<:cordance wllh the provfalons of the Small Boslness Regulato,y Enlorcemenl Fairness Act ol 1998, lhe Small Business Admlnlst,allon has 
eslabllshed aNallonal Small Business and Agrlcullure RegulalOI)' Ombudsman and 10 Regional Fafmoss Boards to receive commenle from small businesses about federal agency 
anforcomenl acllons. The Ombudeman annually evaluates enforcemenl acllvllles and rates each agency'a responsiveness to small business. II you wish to commenl on lho 
unforcemenl ncllom of MaHA. you maycall 1-eee-REG-FAIR {f-888-734.3247). "'write the Ombudsman al Small Business Administration, Office of the Nallonal Ombudsman, 409 3rd 
Slleet, SW MC 2120, Washington, DO 20418. Please nole, however, lhal your tight lo lilt a comment wllh the Ombudsman Is In addlllon loany olher ngtts you may have, Including 
the right loconies! cllatlons and proposed penaHles and oblaln ahearing before the Federal Mina Safely and Heallh Review Commission. 



' Mine Citation/Order U.S. Deoartment of Labor 
Mine Safety and Health Administration 

Secllon I-Vlolallon Data 

1. Dale Mo Da Yr 2. Time (24 Hr. Clock) 
11/4/2021 09471 

3, Citation/ 
Order Number 1 9191653 

4. Served To Scott Webb, Safety Director 5. Operator 

M-CLASS MINING LLC 
6. Mine 

MC#l MINE 
7. Mine ID 

11-03189 
(Contractor) 

8. Condition or PracUce 8a. Written Notice (103g) 1 1_ 

The 2nd shift longwall foreman did not make a record of the fire that occurred on the 
Headgate #8 longwall behind the headgate shields between crosscut 26 and crosscut 27 in entry 
1 after conducting the preshift and on-shift examinations on 8/13/2021. Miners were not 
withdrawn to a s~fe area and the longwall remained in operation. This violation is an 
unwarrantable failure to comply with a mandatory standard. The mine operator has engaged in 
aggravated conduct constituting more than ordinary negligence. 

Standard 75.363(b) was cited 4 times in two years at mine 1103189, all to the operator. 

See Continuation Form (MSHA Form 7000-3a) 0 
9. Vlolatlon A. Health D B. Section C. ParVSectlon of 

Safety @ · of Act TltleS0CFR 
Other D 75.363(b) 

Section 11--lnspectol's Evaluation 

10. Gravity: 
A. Injury or Illness (has) (Is): No Llkellhoop .IJ . _Unlikely 0 Reasonably Likely D Highly Likely Ill Occurred D 
B. Injury or Illness could rea­

No Lost Workdays D Losl Workdays Or Restricted Duty D Permanently Disabling D Fatal Illsonabl be expected to be: 

c. Significant and Substantial: D. Number of Persons Affected: Yes Ill No 0 134 
11. Negllgence (check one) A. None D B. Low. 0 C. Moderate D D. High □ E. Reckless Disregard Ill 

12. Type of Action 104 (d) (2) 13. Type of Issuance (check one) Citation O Order llJ Safeguard D Written Notice □ 

14. Initial Action E. Citation/ F. Dated Mo Da Yr · 
A. Citation D B. Order Ill c. Safeguard D D. Written Notice D Order Number 9195395 4/26/2021 

1 S. Area or Equipment 
Headgate #8 longwall and underground area of the mine. 

16. Termination Due Mo Da Yr
A. Date B. Time (24 Hr. Clock) 

Section 111-Terninallon Action 

17. Action to Terminate 

MoDa Yr18. Terminated A. Date B. Time (24 Hr: Clqek) 

Section IV--Autometed System Data 

19. Type of Inspection 20. Event Number 21. Primary or MIii 
(activity code) E08 7006992 

22. AR Name 23. AR Number 
Bub Whitfield 25151 

MSHA Form 7000-3, Apr 08 (revised) In accordance with the provisions of the Small Business Regulatory Enforcement Fairness Act of 1998, the Small Business Admlnls1raUon has 
established aNational small Busloe~s and ,'\grlcultun, Regulatory Ombudcman and 10 Regional Falmesa Boards 10 receive comments from smaH businesses eboul federal agency 
enrorcement actions. The Ombudsman annuaUy evaluates onforcemenl actlvllles and rales each agency's responsiveness to smell business. IIyou wish to comment on lhe 
enlorcemenl ecUons of MSHA, ~ may call 1-888-REG-FAIR (HIBB-734-3247), or wrKe the Ombudsman et Small Business Admtnlslrallon, Office of the Nallonal Ombudsman, 409 3rd 
Street, SW MC 2120, Washington, DC 20416. Please nole, however, that yoU! rtght lo fie a comment with the Ombudsmen Is In addlllon to any other rights you may have, Including 
the right to contest cllallons end proposed penallles and obtain a hearing before Iha Fodera! Mine Safely and Health Revlew Commission. 



Mine Citation/Order U.S. Department of Labor 
Mine S~fety and Health Administration 

Secllon 1-Vlolallon Dela 

1. Date Mo Oa Yr 2. Time (24 Hr. Clock) 
11/4/2021 1 0950 

3. CllatlQn/ 
Order Number 1 9191654 

4.SeNedTo 

6. Mine 

Scott Webb, Safety Director 

MC#l MINE 

5. Operator 

M-CLASS MINING LLC 
7. Mine ID 

11-03189 
(Contractor) 

8. Condlllon or Practice Ba. Wrllten Notice (103g) 1 1 

The 3rd shift longwall foreman did pot ma~e a record of the fire that occurred on the 
Headgate #8 longwall behind the headgate spields between crosscut 26 and crosscut 27 in entry 
1 after conducting the preshift and on-shift examinations on 8/14/2021. Miners were not 
withdrawn to a safe area and the longwall remained in operation. This violation is an 
unwarrantable failure to comply with a mandatory standard. The mine operator has engaged in 
aggravated conduct constituting more than or~inary negligence. 

Standard 75.363(b) was cited 4 times in two years at mine 1103189, all to the operator. 

See ConUnuatton Form (MSHA Form 700D-3a) D 
9. Violation A. Health D B.Secllon C. Part/Section of 

of Act Tille30 CFRSafely 0 
75.363(b)Other D 

Secllon 11--lnspector's Evaluallon 

1o. Gravity: 
A. Injury or Illness (has) (Is): No Likelihood 0 Unlikely 0 Reasonably Likely D Highly Likely Ill Occurred 0 
B. Injury or nrness could rea­

No Lost Wo~days D Lost Wo1d{lys pr ~~stricted Duty D Permanently Disabling D Fatal Illsonably be ex acted to be: 

C. Significant and Subs1antlal: D. Number of Persons Affected: Yes Ill No 0 134 

11. Negligence (check one) A. None D B. l,!)W D C. Moderate 0 D. High 0 ~- Reckless Disregard Ill 

12. Type of Action 104 (d) (2) 13. Type of Issuance (check one) Citation O Order Ill Safeguard D Written Notice O 

14. lnltlal Action E. Citation/ F. Dated Mo Da Yr 
A. Citation O B. Order Iii C. Safeguard O D. Wrillen Notice D Order Number 9195395 4/26/2021 

15. Area or Equipment 
Headgate #8 longwall and underground area of the mine. 

16, Termination Due Mo Da Yr 
A. Date B. Time (24 Hr. Clock) 

Section 111--Termlnallon Action 

17. Action to Terminate 

MoDa Yr18. Terminated A. Date B. Time (24 Hr. Clock) 

Secllon IV·-Aulomated System Data 

19. Type of Inspection 20. Event Number 21. Ptlmary or Mill 
(acllvily code) EOB 7006992 

22.AR Name 23. AR Number
Bub Whitfield 25151 

MSHA Form 7000-3, Apr 08 (revised) In ar.coroanco wtlh tho provisions of the Small Business Regulaloiy Enforcement Fairness Act ol 1996, lhe Small Business Administration has 
eatabllshed aNaUonal Small Business and Agriculture Regulatory Qmbuclsman end 10 Regtolial falmen Boards to re<;8lve comments from em~• buslnessoa about ledeml agency 
enforcement acllons, The Ombudsman annually evaluatas enforcement acllvllles and rates dach agency"s responsiveness to small business. II you wish to comment on I.he 
enforcement acllons of MSHA, you may call 1-1188-AEG•FAIR (1-sed-734-3247), or write the Ombudsman at Small Business AdmlnlslraUon, Office of the Nallonal Ombudsman, 409 3rd 
Street SW MC 2120, Washlnglon, DC 20416. Please nole, howevbr, I.hat your righl to file a comment with the Ombudsman Is In addlllon to any other righls you may have, Including 
ihe rlghl to conies! cl1allons and proposed penallles and obtain a hearing before !he Federal Mine Safely and Heallh Review Commission, 




